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          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Good morning,

          3  everybody. Today we will examine the Fiscal 2000

          4  Preliminary Financial Plan for the Economic

          5  Development Agencies.

          6                 I am Jerome O'Donovan, from Staten

          7  Island, Chairman of the Economic Development

          8  Committee.

          9                 In addition to our usual development

         10  matters, the City Council has increased concerns

         11  regarding the massive stadium proposal in the

         12  Preliminary Plan, ongoing concerns regarding the $25

         13  million Emerging Industries initiative, and, of

         14  course, the Administration's lack of tax levy

         15  support for neighborhood commercial revitalization.

         16                 While we support most of the work to

         17  better the overall economic development in the City,

         18  we want to confirm that our efforts are helping to

         19  create new jobs, particularly jobs paying a living

         20  wage for residents of the City.

         21                 I would like to welcome the

         22  Administration's Economic Development Leadership to

         23  the hearing, and we will begin with the Department

         24  of Business Services, DBS, and Acting Commissioner

         25  Deborah Weeks.
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          2                 Good morning, Commissioner.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Good

          4  morning.

          5                 Good morning, Chairman O'Donovan and

          6  the members of the Economic Development Committee.

          7  My name is Deborah R. Weeks, and I am the Acting

          8  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

          9  Business Services.

         10                 I am here today to answer any

         11  questions you may have about the Mayor's Preliminary

         12  Budget for Fiscal Year 2000, as it relates to DBS

         13  and to update you on the agency's ongoing and

         14  planned activities.

         15                 The Department of Business Services

         16  continues to provide a high level of services to the

         17  City's small businesses, neighborhood business

         18  organizations, Business Improvement Districts, and

         19  emergent entrepreneurs, while absorbing budget and

         20  staffing reductions.

         21                 By streamlining our operations and

         22  promoting efficiency, DBS has preserved and in many

         23  cases enhanced the level of service to the City's

         24  business community.

         25                 Over the last four years the City
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          2  Business Assistance Unit reduces staff by 50

          3  percent, from 18 to 9. Nonetheless, the unit

          4  continues to increase its business outreach context

          5  and expand its responsibilities.

          6                 By coordinating with business

          7  organizations and BIDs, CBAP increased its outreach

          8  contacts by 17 percent so far this year.

          9                 In addition, in 1998, CBAP, at the

         10  direction of Deputy Mayor Rudy Washington, initiated

         11  the Emergency Response Unit, called the ERU.

         12                 Working in conjunction with the

         13  Mayor's Office of Emergency Management, the ERU

         14  provides assistance to businesses directly affected

         15  by fires, building collapses, water main breaks and

         16  other emergencies.

         17                 Utilizing only the resources of the

         18  existing CBAP staff, the ERU has been instrumental

         19  in helping businesses recover from the Times Square

         20  scaffold collapse, the Fifth Avenue watermain break,

         21  the Westchester Avenue fire in the Bronx, and

         22  numerous other incidents.

         23                 The Neighborhood Development Division

         24  provides invaluable counseling, technical assistance

         25  and financial assistance to neighborhood
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          2  organizations, local development organizations and

          3  Business Improvement Districts Citywide.

          4                 Since 1996, the Division's staffing

          5  has held constant while services expanded,

          6  particularly to accommodate the needs of the growing

          7  number of Business Improvement Districts.

          8                 The Division continues to work with

          9  over 60 local development organizations and has

         10  helped increase the total number of BIDs to 40.

         11                 In addition, the agency's goal of

         12  establishing additional BIDs is coming to fruition.

         13                 DBS expects the Columbus Avenue BID

         14  to be fully functioning by the end of this year, and

         15  we are working with ten other groups currently

         16  exploring the feasibility of forming new BIDs.

         17                 The Fiscal Year 2000 Preliminary

         18  Budget includes funding for increased monitoring and

         19  oversight of Business Improvement Districts to

         20  ensure that the City contracts only with

         21  organizations operating legally and efficiently.

         22                 The Neighborhood Development Division

         23  has also been instrumental in growing the number of

         24  state design economic development zones to nine, and

         25  assisting 657 companies and receiving EDZ
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          2  certification.

          3                 The Energy Cost Savings and Lower

          4  Manhattan Energy Programs have maintained a baseline

          5  budget of seven staff members, while significantly

          6  increasing the caseload.

          7                 The number of applicants has more

          8  than doubled over the last four years. In 1994, 108

          9  small and medium-sized businesses sought benefits

         10  through the Energy Cost Savings Program.

         11                 In 1998, close to 250 businesses

         12  applied to the program. In addition, the agency is

         13  currently modifying a program to accommodate recent

         14  changes in utility industry, expediting benefit

         15  delivery.

         16                 The Vendor Division has operated

         17  since inception in 1995, with a staff of six people.

         18  The unit has worked cooperatively with the Mayor's

         19  Vending Operating Committee.

         20                 This interagency committee

         21  coordinates Citywide street vending enforcement to

         22  remediate illegal street vending. Thus far the

         23  Division has helped establish three safe and legal

         24  vendor markets. One of the original goals of the

         25  vendor initiative was to assist street vendors
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          2  interested in graduating to permanent commercial

          3  locations.

          4                 The Vendor Division implemented a new

          5  program this year, the Vendor Training Course, to

          6  help achieve this goal. With no additional

          7  resources, the Vendor Division has conducted courses

          8  attended by 155 vendors so far this fiscal year.

          9                 The courses which are offered in

         10  multiple languages, including French, Spanish,

         11  English and Creole, provide entrepreneurial skills

         12  training to vendors as a way to help them prepare

         13  for the responsibility of operating and managing a

         14  permanent retail site.

         15                 An additional 265 vendors have

         16  applied for future courses. The Fiscal Year 2000

         17  Preliminary Budget includes a modest reduction in

         18  funding and staffing for the Markets Division.

         19                 In spite of this DBS does not expect

         20  any disruption in its successful oversight of the

         21  Fulton Fish Market and Hunts Point Market. DBS'

         22  efforts over the last year have resulted in rent

         23  revenue increases of 15 percent at the Fulton Fish

         24  Market and three percent at Hunt's Point.

         25                 DBS is committed to maintaining and
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          2  improving its services to the City's small business

          3  community in the coming fiscal year, while holding

          4  the line on expenditures.

          5                 I would be happy to answer any

          6  questions you may have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

          8  Commissioner.

          9                 I am joined by Councilman Carrion of

         10  the Bronx, and Councilwoman Clarke of Brooklyn.

         11                 Commissioner, on the stadium issue,

         12  the Administration has proposed allocating $96

         13  million in funding to the New York Sports Facility

         14  Corporation in Fiscal Year 2000. Can you tell the

         15  Committee what this funding would be utilized for

         16  exactly?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: The

         18  funding is in our budget, but it is an EDC budget

         19  line, so that is best explained by Charles Millard,

         20  who follows us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right, we

         22  will ask him.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: The emerging

         25  industries, how much of the $25 million currently
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          2  allocated to the funding of the Council's emergency

          3  industry initiative has been dispersed?

          4                 What's the Administration's intention

          5  with regard to these funds in the current year

          6  coming up?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Deputy

          8  Mayor Randy Levine is in negotiation with the

          9  Speaker's Office, and the Administration is

         10  committed to developing a favorable spending plan

         11  for the fund. But I believe they are working with

         12  Bruce Bender, Randy Levine.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, so you

         14  are saying that negotiations are ongoing now?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right.

         17                 On the community colleges, describe

         18  the links between the Department's business

         19  development specialists and the City community

         20  colleges. How would the Department improve a

         21  relationship between the community colleges and City

         22  businesses?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: We don't

         24  have a direct link with the community colleges. I

         25  know that some of our staff has spoken at courses in
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          2  the community colleges that were relevant to

          3  entrepreneurial efforts and we worked with persons,

          4  people that have taken classes, they have come in

          5  and done internships and business services and we

          6  work in that manner, but we don't have a direct link

          7  with the community colleges.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: But if the

          9  community colleges need DBS or any arm of the

         10  Economic Development agencies to come and speak, you

         11  are there?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: We are

         13  available.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You are

         15  available and you have done it?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right. I

         18  am joined by Councilman Fisher from Brooklyn, and

         19  Councilwoman Eldridge from Manhattan. And I see

         20  Councilman Golden from Brooklyn here too.

         21                 Now, the BID monitoring program that

         22  you had mentioned, you also had mentioned that it

         23  looks like you are working with ten new corporations

         24  or entities that look like they want to become BIDs

         25  too, is that right?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: How many BIDs

          4  altogether in the City of New York?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Forty.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Forty. There

          7  might be 50 then you are saying?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Could be.

          9  It takes awhile though.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: What's the

         11  biggest BID? Is it Times Square?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Grand

         13  Central.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Grand Central

         15  BID.

         16                 Is that where Mr. Cerullo just --

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes, it

         18  is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right.

         20                 The Department plans to increase the

         21  effectiveness of its oversight of the BIDs by adding

         22  two staff positions, are there particular BID

         23  functions that the new staff will focus on? Anything

         24  new?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: What we
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          2  will do is put more concentrated effort in oversight

          3  of BIDs to make sure that some of the concerns that

          4  were made by the Council the previous fiscal year

          5  are not raised again and that we bring everything in

          6  order and there is more access to the Council and to

          7  the Administration for expertise as to exactly on a

          8  day-to-day basis what is happening with the BIDs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, now, on

         10  the ten new BIDs, I don't know if you have it in

         11  front of you but in what boroughs are these ten new

         12  BIDs generally -- I know on Staten Island I don't

         13  believe there is intention for a BID.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: I don't

         15  think so.

         16                 Barbara?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: How about the

         18  Bronx or Manhattan, or Queens or in Brooklyn?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: I know

         20  Manhattan is included.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: I would

         22  imagine Manhattan would have the majority of the

         23  BIDs. I mean the new BIDs, ten new BIDs.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: If I

         25  may? Barbara Wolfe, Assistant Commissioner,
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          2  Department of Business Services.

          3                 There are give or take ten in the

          4  planning or discussion phases now, and, Council

          5  member, in fact there are two that are talking in

          6  Staten Island. Forest Avenue is one, and there has

          7  been sort of off-again, on-again flirting with one

          8  for Port Richmond Avenue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Right.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: But

         11  whether they really take it to the next steps

         12  obviously is up to the property owners.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Are you

         14  counting those two BIDs in the ten?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: I am

         16  counting Forest Avenue, because they seem to be a

         17  little bit more real. Port Richmond at this point is

         18  off-again, on-again.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right, so

         20  now we are down to nine.

         21                 Where are the other BIDs?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Well,

         23  we have got Council Member Golden, that is working

         24  with a group in Bay Ridge.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Right.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: We are

          3  talking to a group on 161st Street in the Bronx.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: In the Bronx.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: We are

          6  talking to a group on Fordham Road in the Bronx. We

          7  are talking to a group on Allerton Avenue in the

          8  Bronx. We are talking to a group on Fulton Street in

          9  Bed Stuy, so we are up to, one, two, three, four,

         10  five.

         11                 We have also got a group on 86th

         12  Street in Yorkville, Manhattan, six. There is a

         13  group also on 59th Street, Lexington, Park Avenue in

         14  Manhattan. There has been interest expressed from

         15  West Maspeth, and there has also been interest

         16  expressed -- actually more than interest, very

         17  active planning going on in Kings Bridge, Riverdale,

         18  and I think that comes up to ten, and if you need

         19  some more, I will give you some more.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: That's

         21  information for the Council Members, that's good.

         22                 All right, Council members -- in

         23  fact, I will allow it right now. Any questions,

         24  Council members, on those?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, I just
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          2  wanted to ask you --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Yes, go ahead.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, I just

          5  wanted to ask you, I had expressed Church Avenue to

          6  become a part of the Flatbush BID because it doesn't

          7  take the Church Avenue from Albany to Flatbush

          8  Avenue, and then the Camba (phonetic) I think just

          9  comes to, and then the rest of Church Avenue, as is

         10  Flatbush Avenue from Empire to Parkside, and whether

         11  -- I have been working with the Merchants

         12  Association and whether you would consider working

         13  with those two groups I would appreciate it, because

         14  it then brings all of East Flatbush into a cohesive

         15  group of businesses that are thriving, and many of

         16  them really thriving businesses, and I think it is

         17  important that we -- as I work to make that a

         18  tourist mecca, that the businesses thrive and grow

         19  so people will have something to see and love when

         20  they come to Flatbush.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: We

         22  would be delighted to work with them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Council Member
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          2  Carrion.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman. Since we are on BIDs --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: We will get

          6  the BIDs over with.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Take

          8  advantage of the BIDs.

          9                 Allerton, Fordham, 161st Street and

         10  Kingsbridge, Riverdale, Van Cordtlandt Development

         11  Corporation is doing something down on Broadway. If

         12  you could, and very superficially, just sort of give

         13  the status of each of those?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I am very

         16  interested in Fordham Road, that is in my district.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEEKS: You

         18  know, I was hoping you wouldn't say that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Being a good

         20  neighbor.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Let's

         22  start with Kingsbridge, Riverdale. They are actually

         23  the furthest along. They have been working with

         24  their community, they have a good level of support

         25  and we are really hoping that we can initiate the
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          2  formal approval process on that in the foreseeable

          3  future.

          4                 161st I should have gone -- I will do

          5  Fordham because obviously that is next priority.

          6  Fordham has been honestly been working in fits and

          7  starts on BIDs since circa 1982, '83, when the BID

          8  program began. With the Bronx Council now taking the

          9  lead, they seem to be more serious.

         10                 But we are still looking to assure

         11  ourselves that there sufficient property owner and

         12  business support for it, and we will continue to

         13  work with them until obviously that is demonstrated.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, they

         15  haven't crossed the threshold of owner support?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Not

         17  that we are sufficiently comfortable with or

         18  confident of at this point in time. But I do give

         19  them a lot of credit, they are working very hard and

         20  they really believe that BID will make a lot of

         21  sense for the Fordham Road area, and we are

         22  continuing to support their efforts on their way.

         23                 The other two, 161st Street, there is

         24  a draft plan. There are very few owners involved, so

         25  they seem to have support, but, again, we are
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          2  looking to ensure that it is broad and deep.

          3                 And Allerton Avenue is the furthest

          4  behind.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: As you know,

          7  I have always had questions about BIDs, and I think

          8  we are entering into a new phase. It is interesting

          9  to me that the Administration has cut the office of

         10  -- the City Business Assistance Unit, which has

         11  given assistance, I am interpreting, to business

         12  owners, and particularly smaller business owners; is

         13  that right?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: We have cut

         16  that personnel, but we are adding people into BIDs

         17  and the BIDs are now taking a different character.

         18  We have the Mayor agreeing with us about the power

         19  of the large BIDs, Grand Central, Times Square, 34th

         20  Street, and where I think the Administration moved

         21  in and now is saying two extra members are going in

         22  to be sure, to ensure that these BIDs are more

         23  accountable to the Administration, but in the

         24  meantime I think we are developing smaller BIDs and

         25  I want to know why.
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          2                 If in fact we were giving assistance

          3  to small business owners, business owners, those are

          4  the commercial tenants, and we were delivering a

          5  sanitation and security that the City should be

          6  delivering in all of these districts, why do we need

          7  BIDs on these smaller strips?

          8                 I have a BID that is coming before

          9  the City Planning Commission for approval, it is the

         10  Columbus Avenue BID, it has been applying and

         11  forming and reforming for many years. It is a BID

         12  that is coming to us from -- and remember, it is the

         13  owners of the property, it is not the commercial

         14  tenants, and it is a controversial BID, because

         15  there are many commercial tenants who are very

         16  suspicious of the owners since they pay very high

         17  rents and they don't want the extra assessment, even

         18  though in this case the assessment is not a large

         19  assessment, but they are afraid it is going to be

         20  passed on to them.

         21                 The purpose of this BID is not

         22  necessarily to provide security, and it is not to

         23  provide sanitation services; the purpose of the BID

         24  is to be a marketing agent for Columbus Avenue. That

         25  means then it is going to be a marketing agent for
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          2  the commercial tenants, not for the owners, unless

          3  the owners are looking for new tenants for higher

          4  rents. And it has supported the owners of the

          5  property, it has some of the commercial tenants, it

          6  doesn't have other commercial tenants and it doesn't

          7  have other members of the community, even the

          8  community board is split on it, although I think it

          9  was approved by the Committee by one vote.

         10                 So, I really believe we are entering

         11  a new phase and I think we should look at it very

         12  carefully. I think who are we really assisting with

         13  these? I don't understand what these BIDs are,

         14  except that it is sneaking in a backdoor almost --

         15  it is not sneaking and that is not the term I want

         16  to use because I have the greatest respect for

         17  Barbara Wolfe who handles the BIDs, I just wish she

         18  was doing commercial revitalization and assistance

         19  to the commercial owners instead of these damn BIDs,

         20  because I think we are finding ourselves that the

         21  only way people are paying for these services is by

         22  increasing their taxes, so let's face it, that is

         23  what we are doing.

         24                 And everybody wants these BIDs

         25  because we can't deliver the services any other way,
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          2  and we should be delivering the services the other

          3  way.

          4                 And I could go, I wanted to ask

          5  Commissioner Weeks, but I guess we will come back to

          6  that, about the markets, because I visited several

          7  markets lately --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Exactly.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But I just

         10  want that statement and I want everybody to look at

         11  these things carefully, because I believe we are not

         12  delivering the City services we should be and we are

         13  now taxing, and those taxes we have no guarantee are

         14  not going to be passed along to the commercial

         15  tenants.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman

         18  Golden.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 I am coming with a different hat, I

         22  come before -- before I became a City Councilperson,

         23  I was the head of the Fifth Avenue Merchants

         24  Organization and the head of a larger organization

         25  which represents about 3,000 businesses, and where I
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          2  find the Business Improvement Districts in need, and

          3  I think our community districts need more of them,

          4  is because it gives an ownership to that community.

          5  But it also involves not just the business person,

          6  it involves the owners of the business and it

          7  involves the communities. So the communities come

          8  out and get involved as well.

          9                 So, from our point of view, from the

         10  Bay Ridge end of it, from my own district, I think

         11  it has been something that has been long needed and

         12  I think the community is, most communities are in

         13  support of these Business Improvement Districts. And

         14  we find the owners are the ones that are in support

         15  because they wind up getting a better tenant and a

         16  more qualified tenant, and the tenant wants to stay

         17  and be part of that community.

         18                 So, in response to my colleague, I

         19  think we should take a look at the Business

         20  Improvement District to make sure they don't become

         21  the problems that we see in the larger BIDs, but the

         22  smaller BIDs do serve a purpose and I am glad to see

         23  the great job that you are doing.

         24                 How is the Bay Ridge proceeding? Are

         25  they proceeding along?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Yes,

          3  they are.  In fact we were out at a steering

          4  committee meeting yesterday, having received the

          5  authorization to proceed from the Mayor, has given

          6  the official green light, and now they are really

          7  moving as quickly as possible to get the support

          8  they need.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Commissioner

         13  Wolfe, give us just very briefly now, and we will

         14  move on to the Convention Visitor's Bureau, the BID,

         15  for instance, Times Square, what is their budget?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Their

         17  budget currently is slightly over 5 million, I

         18  believe. I am doing that from memory.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And all of

         20  that money is money that is being collected from the

         21  members; is that correct?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: That is

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: No City money

         25  whatsoever?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: The BID

          3  assessments is about, as I say, slightly over 5

          4  million, 5.3, is collected from the members for the

          5  basic services of Sanitation, security and special

          6  events alike.

          7                 It may be in the case of Times

          8  Square, if there are other special events like Year

          9  2000 Millennium, they would have to obtain other

         10  sponsors. But that is a one-time only type of

         11  activity.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And how about

         13  the Grand Central BID, what is their budget?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Their

         15  budget is 10 million and change.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Ten million.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Ten

         18  million.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And what is

         20  the salary of the Director of Times Square, and

         21  salary of the Director of -- because it is public

         22  information.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: That is

         24  information I don't have with me right now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Can you
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          2  provide us with all of the budgets for all of the

          3  BIDs? That shouldn't be too hard to get, should it?

          4  What's the lowest BID?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: The

          6  lowest BID is $53,000 on 180th Street in South

          7  Jamaica, Queens.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: $53,000? And

          9  who works in that BID?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Who

         11  works in that BID?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: One person?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: A

         14  part-time person, a very part-time person, and works

         15  very closely with the eight or ten industrial

         16  property owners that line 180th Street.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, so you

         18  will give us an assessment of the budgets and the

         19  salaries of each and every BID, okay? Of the forty

         20  BIDs.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: That is not a

         23  hard thing to get.

         24                 Councilwoman, do you have another

         25  question on the BIDs?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Did I read

          3  some place that the garment industry BID gets City

          4  money and that we are decreasing that contribution

          5  this year?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: No.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: No, okay.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, let's

         10  move on now to the Convention Visitors Bureau.

         11                 The Financial Plan includes up to an

         12  additional $1 million for a total of $2 million in

         13  matching grants for the Convention Visitors Bureau

         14  in Fiscal 2000. So, what does the Convention

         15  Visitors Bureau do to develop the Bronx or Staten

         16  Island or Brooklyn or Queens?

         17                 We love Manhattan, Councilwoman

         18  Eldridge, don't get us wrong.

         19                 In other words, there is a huge

         20  question out there that Manhattan is a great

         21  generator and engine of this City, we realize that,

         22  but there are also four other boroughs and what have

         23  they been doing for the other four boroughs?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Okay,

         25  again, this is the Convention and Visitors Bureau,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            28

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES

          2  it is in my budget, but we don't handle it, it goes

          3  through Randy Levine's Office, Deputy Mayor Levine's

          4  Office.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Why? Why the

          6  Deputy Mayor? Why not yours?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: It always

          8  did. The Convention and Visitors Bureau is in the

          9  Business Service's budget --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Right.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: But we are

         12  not responsible, we don't manage it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: The Deputy

         14  Mayor manages it.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Fran

         16  Reiter was before and Randy Levine now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And what other

         18  special projects does the Deputy Mayor Manage; do

         19  you know?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Just EDC.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right, we

         22  will ask EDC.

         23                 On the markets, the current year and

         24  out-year revenue plan for rents for the terminal

         25  markets is 7 million; how much rent has the City
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          2  received so far? Is there any lag on collecting

          3  rents?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: We have

          5  increased the rents by 15 percent out of Fulton Fish

          6  and three percent out of Hunt's Point.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Have we

          8  collected those rents?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: EDC

         10  collects the rents.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: You don't

         12  know? I have to ask EDC you are saying?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, we will

         15  ask EDC.

         16                 On the commercial revitalization

         17  plan, what is the City Fund's portion of the

         18  Administration's proposed Fiscal 2000 Commercial

         19  Revitalization Program to LDCs?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: The City's

         21  portion would be 193,000, and there would be 1.9

         22  million in CD eligible funds.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay.

         24                 Any questions?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilwoman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I just want

          4  to continue, but then you go ahead.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilwoman

          6  Eldridge.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: What is the

          8  difference between the Garment Industry Development

          9  Corporation and the BID in the garment industry?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: They

         11  have got a very different mission. The Business

         12  Improvement District, the Fashion Center Business

         13  Improvement District is really focusing on promoting

         14  industry overall, improving the security and

         15  sanitation of the area and enhancing of the physical

         16  environment of the fashion district.

         17                 The Garment Industry Development

         18  Corporation, who is a member of the Fashion Center

         19  BID's Board, in fact preceded the Business

         20  Improvement District and its membership includes

         21  industry unions and public officials, and its prime

         22  goal is to promote and develop and retain the

         23  garment industry through job training, through

         24  export programs, and it operates not only in

         25  Manhattan, not only in the Fashion Center in
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          2  Manhattan, but Chinatown, and does have outreach to

          3  the other boroughs where there are garment centers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: It's an

          5  important function?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: And it

          7  is funded, as I say, in part by the City, but

          8  primarily through private and union funds.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And the City

         10  in this current fiscal budget that we are

         11  considering is recommending a 50 percent cut in its

         12  contribution, so it seems to me there has to be some

         13  relation again in what we said before about the

         14  pulling back of the City in assisting businesses and

         15  the emphasis on the BIDs, right? That is where I --

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WOLFE: Only

         17  because the nature of the two beasts are really

         18  rather different.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But we are

         20  also leading those two beasts, right? And feeding

         21  one more than the other, it seems to me, in

         22  services.

         23                 But anyway, that is where I got the

         24  50 percent cut, the Garment Industry Development

         25  Corporation has the 50 percent reduction.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilwoman

          4  Clarke.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

          6  Commissioner, I would like for you to describe for

          7  me what is the core role and responsibility of DBS

          8  versus EDC, and if you will give me a sense of who

          9  is responsible for whom, because it seems to me like

         10  money comes to you then goes to EDC and that you

         11  have no control over it, and I am trying to

         12  understand the budgetary process, so that I can get

         13  a handle on things, so if you will describe for us

         14  so we have a sense of what we come to you for in

         15  terms of accountability once we vote on a budget?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Okay, I

         17  will speak briefly and then I will let Shaazad Ali,

         18  the Budget Director, be more detailed.

         19                 DBS cannot, one, hold property. So,

         20  any time a piece of property is either designated or

         21  we pick it up, it has to be assigned to EDC. We give

         22  a contract, they work within the contract with DBS

         23  to manage property.

         24                 We cannot do construction, so when

         25  the vendor programs the lots that are having
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          2  construction, EDC must handle that for the City and

          3  for DBS.

          4                 On the other budgetary functions, I

          5  think it is a matter of where they are placed and

          6  what the mission is of EDC. But I will let Shaaz

          7  talk about that.

          8                 MR. ALI: Good morning. My name is

          9  Shaazad Ali, the Budget Director for the Department

         10  of Business Services.

         11                 Councilwoman, if you will look at the

         12  last page, where I sort of broke out the allocation

         13  of the Financial Plan for $127 million, it's a

         14  chart, it sort of allocates how the funding within

         15  the Department of Business Services is.

         16                 Basically EDC funding is like a

         17  pass-through for us. We enter into a contract, a

         18  yearly contract, with the Economic Development

         19  Corporation, in order to float these additional

         20  funds that are earmarked here, we have the Film

         21  Office, we have EDC, the Convention and Visitors

         22  Bureau and the Empowerment Zone, and the sports

         23  facility.

         24                 If you notice, out of the $127

         25  million, there is only eight percent of that is
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          2  allocated directly to the Department of Business

          3  Services in order to carry out its mission.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Now, you

          5  cannot hold property and you cannot do construction.

          6  Once the property is developed, the construction is

          7  done, then what happens? The responsibility comes

          8  back to you?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: If it is a

         10  management responsibility, which in your case I

         11  don't think there will be, since you have got an

         12  Economic Development Corporation running it, it

         13  would come back to us to monitor whether or not the

         14  rents are being paid, that things are going right,

         15  with you and with your group, and do the necessary

         16  things that have to be done. And if it is EDC, we

         17  will coordinate with EDC for additional items that

         18  come under their control.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me use the

         20  hypothetical me, since I don't like to point at

         21  anybody else but myself. Since I am assuming that I

         22  am doing business with you and through you, for any

         23  difficulty that I may have working with EDC to

         24  implement that which must be done, whether it is the

         25  holding of the property, or doing other
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          2  construction, to whom then do I speak, you are to

          3  EDC, since I thought that I was doing business with

          4  you? Or do you get to the table at the same time

          5  with EDC so that nothing falls between the cracks?

          6  How does that work?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: In your

          8  case you could speak to either one of us, but what

          9  generally happens, EDC and DBS work as partners in

         10  the projects that we are each responsible for, and

         11  we would come to the table at the same time. If

         12  there is a problem, for whatever reason, existing in

         13  my agency, or EDC, then, one, you should come to me

         14  direct, and I will try and pull the different

         15  parties in the agencies together to meet with you or

         16  any other Council person who has a problem within

         17  their district.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Since this has

         19  to do with business, who is the parent and who is

         20  the child in this case, EDC or DBS; who is the

         21  parent organization?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Well, it

         23  would be DBS, but I don't have the money, that's the

         24  problem. All of the money that you have put in is up

         25  at EDC, so I have to work through their Comptroller,
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          2  through Charlie Millard and his vice presidents, you

          3  know, to answer your questions.

          4                 If you have a direct relationship

          5  with Charlie and/or the vice presidents, then that

          6  is easier for you. It is just as easy for me to pick

          7  up the phone after talking to you and call upstairs

          8  and get them working on whatever it is, but it is

          9  not the direct relationship and then I have to get

         10  back to you. So, it is best that you maintain, if

         11  possible, the direct relationship with both of us.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. And

         13  finally, so there is a cracking of the whip, you

         14  crack the whip and so that I come to you to crack

         15  the whip.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: All right.

         18  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Council Member

         20  Carrion.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Good morning, Commissioner.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Good

         25  morning.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Our job is to

          3  -- I guess our job is to peel off the layers and

          4  try to understand what we are doing as a City,

          5  whether it is policing or business and economic

          6  development or services to the homeless. And I am a

          7  little bit perplexed right now because I don't

          8  really understand what is happening at the

          9  Department of Business Services. I see a large pie

         10  here -- well, let me even go back further.

         11                 I see an agency mission that includes

         12  a number of things that, according to the questions

         13  that were brought to you by the Chairman,

         14  theoretically you should be able to answer and be

         15  directly responsible for, and I think that has been

         16  the structure in the past, and I will just cite some

         17  things that are in the mission statement, as it

         18  pertains to your Department:

         19                 - provide business and financial

         20  services to companies in need of assistance, I think

         21  you do that.

         22                 - packages and negotiate to major

         23  commercial and industrial development for the City.

         24                 - organizes with the private sector a

         25  comprehensive marketing program to attract new
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          2  businesses to the City.

          3                 I am not sure that you still do that.

          4                 - and to retain and expand existing

          5  firms -- and it goes on down the line.

          6                 A whole bunch of things that would

          7  seem to fit into things like stadium, which you

          8  referred to EDC, emerging industries, which I think

          9  also was referred to EDC --

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: I said

         11  Randy Levine was negotiating with the Speaker on the

         12  emerging loan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Oh, okay.

         14                 And then with regard to community

         15  colleges, there is no direct link, so you do bid

         16  monitoring, and your Deputy Commissioner or

         17  Assistant Commissioner, I am not sure what the title

         18  is, but Barbara, as I know her, is great at that.

         19                 The Convention and Visitors Bureau,

         20  you referred to Randy Levine who manages the CVB

         21  budget, the markets, EDC, so we have two little

         22  pieces it seems, commercial revitalization, 193,000

         23  which is our share, the City's share, and the BIDs.

         24                 And then I looked at this pie and I

         25  got really scared because I said, well, maybe we
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          2  should be calling this the Department of Sports

          3  Facilities. Something is wrong here where you have

          4  75 percent of the DBS budget goes to sports

          5  facilities, but there is no plan, there is no --

          6  there is nothing on paper right now. What does this

          7  mean, eight percent of the budget is actual DBS.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right. If

          9  you want to talk about that, I can talk about that

         10  one.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: One percent,

         12  or a little less than, about a million dollars is

         13  for film, right?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right, and

         15  Commissioner Scott is with us this morning for any

         16  questions about that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay. So, the

         18  lion's share of this newly expanded DBS budget is

         19  sports facility-related?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  So, then the

         22  question, I am sort of carrying on a little bit here

         23  with my colleague from Brooklyn, Council Member

         24  Clarke, what is happening at DBS? Where are we

         25  going? Because it seems like we are shedding most of
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          2  the responsibility of the Department and putting on

          3  a major responsibility which is the implementation

          4  of a sports facility concept.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Well, the

          6  sports facility is new. It is fairly new. But when

          7  DBS was formed, and EDC, the Economic Development

          8  Corporation came about, the Charter basically says

          9  what we can do economically with Economic

         10  Development and what we can't, and therefore EDC

         11  falls in as a sister agency to pick up those things

         12  which we are no mandated to do in the Charter.

         13                 So, it is not that we have shared, it

         14  is because however it was created and put into the

         15  Charter, DBS has certain limitations as to what they

         16  can do, and EDC was to pick up the other, and EDC

         17  also has larger responsibility for retaining,

         18  attracting businesses within their mission.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: But the

         20  Department of Business Services is a distinct

         21  agency.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And you have

         24  the sports facility funds that are proposed in the

         25  Department of Business Services, but --
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: It is just

          3  parked there.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: It's a

          5  parking lot.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: It's a

          7  parking lot. And we manage that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right, but

          9  when we discuss EDC, when questions come up, you

         10  refer us to EDC.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right, and

         12  EDC should be able to answer the questions that were

         13  asked of me that I said ask EDC.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: And vice

         16  versa, when EDC comes before us with the Council, a

         17  lot of questions they skip over and they give to us.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         19  Commissioner.

         20                 Let me just, if I may, Mr. Chairman,

         21  go to another issue that is part of the Charter

         22  mandate which is to create a comprehensive plan for

         23  waterfront use and development.

         24                 As far as I understand, part of your

         25  role is to do that as well, no? Am I wrong? Maybe
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          2  what I am reading here is incorrect.

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: That,

          4  because we cannot hold property, that, too, is given

          5  over to EDC.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: No, no. I am

          7  not talking about holding property, I am talking

          8  about creating a comprehensive plan for waterfront

          9  use and development. Not owning property --

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: That is

         11  done by EDC in conjunction with us. And what we do

         12  is we monitor the waterfront through security

         13  enforcement and dock master unit.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes, which is

         15  another question I had because I saw you were going

         16  to eliminate -- you had an elimination of one

         17  position.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: One

         19  position. And that position is open now because that

         20  person has been on leave from the agency for a year

         21  or more.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, you are

         23  eliminating that position?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: They have
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          2  been on leave, but you are eliminating them?

          3                 No replacement, okay. Very

          4  interesting.

          5                 So, are you then saying that you

          6  don't really have a plan for the waterfront? Is

          7  there a unit, a person in your office, a planner in

          8  your office that is working on a waterfront plan?

          9  Because I have some very definite ideas about what

         10  we should do with the waterfront in certain parts of

         11  this City, including in my district on the Harlem

         12  River Waterfront, and I did have a discussion with

         13  Chuck Millard about this last week.

         14                 But I want to understand what your

         15  role is and if you are putting any of your

         16  resources, the limited resources you have into that?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: No, we are

         18  not.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: You are not

         20  doing that.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Because

         22  EDC is handling that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: It sounds

         24  like the dismantling of DBS at this point.

         25                 And finally, just a very quick
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          2  question about the Kingsbridge Armory. There is a

          3  large armory in my district, in the West Bronx, it

          4  is really a City facility, it is huge, it is the

          5  equivalent of three soccer fields side-by-side, four

          6  city blocks. Five stories into the ground, the

          7  largest armory in the United States. It is vacant.

          8  We put $30 million into it, and last week I heard

          9  that the Administration had created the Kingsbridge

         10  Armory Task Force, do you know anything about that?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: No.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Does anybody

         13  in your Department that is here know anything about

         14  the Kingsbridge Armory Task Force?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay, thank

         17  you very much, Commissioner.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:  We have to

         20  find out about that, though. So, let's let counsel

         21  find out about the Kingsbridge Armory Task Force.

         22                 Councilwoman Clarke.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, I just

         24  wanted to follow up. And Mr. Chairman, I think that

         25  probably a joint hearing with EDC and DBS at some
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          2  point in time so we can get a full picture of how

          3  this works might be important at some point in time?

          4  Not now during this budget, but at some other point

          5  in time, because I feel like my colleague, that the

          6  child is stronger than the parent, and I know that

          7  happened from time to time when you get older, you

          8  know, the child comes up and takes the strength but

          9  they can't always take the role of the parent, and I

         10  am concerned about that.

         11                 What I also want to ask a question

         12  about, minority and women-owned business

         13  enterprises, okay? An initiative that was strong and

         14  where a lot of women felt that they could come to

         15  the table and participate in the wealth of the City,

         16  as I see it, and minorities, and I am both, had an

         17  opportunity to participate fully and knew that they

         18  were full partners. It seems to me that all of that

         19  has eroded, and I know you will probably give me a

         20  different answer, but I have many people who come to

         21  my office and said there was a time when my business

         22  was like this, and now I understand the door is

         23  closed and that in fact that many agencies have been

         24  told that since the initiative that was through a

         25  former Mayor has died, that nobody needs to respond
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          2  to the needs of these businesses; can I have some

          3  clarification about how things are working so that I

          4  can say to those contractors in my district all of

          5  this is because you are not pushing hard enough or

          6  whatever it is, but as far as I know, both men and

          7  women have said to me my business is drying at the

          8  vine because I cannot get to the table anymore. Can

          9  you give me some understanding of what is happening

         10  to minority and women-owned businesses in the City?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Okay, it

         12  is true that the Minority and Women Business

         13  Enterprise program sunset in June of '98, we all

         14  know that.

         15                 The Charter states that there still

         16  must be certification of minority and women-owned

         17  businesses, so we are still doing certification. I

         18  believe we have over 1,600 people on the

         19  certification list. That list is sent and generated,

         20  as it is updated, to every agency in the City. There

         21  may not be goals in some contracts because that is

         22  eliminated through the program, but we do, I do talk

         23  to Commissioners, Mary Colon is the Director of the

         24  M/WBE program, speaks to agencies. We do outreach,

         25  we encourage. In this past week I had two or three
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          2  people in, working through the certification process

          3  and hooking them up with the agencies that could

          4  benefit them.

          5                 It would help us, it would help the

          6  Administration to know what agencies are saying that

          7  they are not entertaining the use of minority and

          8  woman-owned contractors because they don't have to.

          9                 The Mayor, nor anybody else in the

         10  Administration, has said do not work with minority

         11  and woman-owned businesses. I am in contact with the

         12  agencies, as well as Rudy Washington, we encourage

         13  it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Commissioner,

         15  you know, I don't want to be curt, I am trying to be

         16  respectful, but I know that there are persons who

         17  feel that it is no use, they waste their time, spin

         18  their wheel. And yes, you may be able to show us a

         19  large numbers of people who are certified, they

         20  don't want certification, they want work. They want

         21  certification, they want work, they want a fair way

         22  of knowing that when my bid is in, I may not be a

         23  friend of somebody, but I can also get work so that

         24  I can provide work in the community that I am a part

         25  of. I am a person who wants to see my community
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          2  really grow. I don't want to hear businesses say,

          3  well, because this is now over, because there was a

          4  sunset, it is more than a sunset and the moon didn't

          5  rise even after the sunset, because usually, you

          6  know, after darkness there is some light, but it

          7  seems as though people are not even getting a ray of

          8  light, and although some things may not be written

          9  or spoken, there are more unspoken rules in life

         10  than there are spoken rules, and I think it is the

         11  unspoken that people are speaking to me about.

         12                 I don't know about my other

         13  colleagues, but I would really like to know how do

         14  we encourage people to come to the table in a City

         15  where we have a budget of some 34 billion, 33

         16  billion, whatever it is, that there is fairness and

         17  equity, that people who are qualified, people who

         18  got the skills and the talent irrespective of how

         19  their skin looks, or their accent sound, that they

         20  have a right to be a part of, and that is what I am

         21  trying to figure out, Commissioner.

         22                 And then, after hearing from you that

         23  all of the big pieces where the need is is upstairs,

         24  because it may have to do with construction or it

         25  may have to do with ownership or whatever it is,
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          2  means that although you are the parent, you don't

          3  have the muscle to say well I know what you are

          4  doing in construction and you ought to make sure

          5  some other folks get to the table. That is what is

          6  burning me up and making me pretty upset as a

          7  minority and a woman that my constituents can come

          8  to me and say there was a time when I was making a

          9  half a million, three-quarter of a million dollars

         10  and now they can't make a dime. It is not fair, it

         11  is not right, and I am putting it on the record.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, whether the sun sets or

         13  not, you better get some sunrise in here and some

         14  sunburning.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         17  Councilwoman.

         18                 All right, we are here joined by

         19  Council Member Perkins from Manhattan.

         20                 Now, the World Trade Center deal,

         21  selling it, et cetera, who is involved in that?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Not us. I

         23  don't want to say EDC, but it's not us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: The 125th

         25  Street, the market, when the Council, this Committee
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          2  visited it a month ago, what is the status of the

          3  litigation on that, Manhattan?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: They were

          5  in court earlier this week, and I believe that the

          6  attorneys are either due back in court -- there is

          7  that general counsel.

          8                 MR. SCHWARZ: Good morning. Andrew

          9  Schwarz, Counsel to the Department of Business

         10  Services.

         11                 Yes, those cases are pending in Civil

         12  Court now, and the trial has begun on those cases.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: It has.

         14                 MR. SCHWARZ: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: As of this

         16  week?

         17                 MR. SCHWARZ: It began last week and

         18  we also had a conference with the judge on Monday.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right. All

         20  right, good, it is in court.

         21                 MR. SCHWARZ: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right,

         23  fine.

         24                 Now, one other question,

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 The MMR hearing, DBS, in November of

          3  last year, you testified about the status of the

          4  Locally-based Enterprise, LBE program, which is

          5  supposed to take the place of the Minority and

          6  Women-Owned Business Enterprise Program.

          7                 You testified that in the first

          8  quarter of 1998, 127 million in City contracts were

          9  eligible for the program and 2.2 million actually

         10  went to certified LBEs. You also testified that you

         11  were working to "broaden the pool of LBEs" for

         12  "raising the threshold for certification."

         13                 You were also working to reverse the

         14  downward trend in LBE certification. So, what

         15  happened?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: We are in

         17  fact continuing to do just what I had testified to

         18  last time. We referred to the Mayor's Office of

         19  Construction, information to get data on the

         20  construction industry and where they see the

         21  direction, and we are waiting for the Office of

         22  Construction to get in touch with us to tell us the

         23  reasoning to justify an increase in the dollar

         24  threshold for firms eligible for LBE.

         25                 Once we receive the information, then
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          2  we will go ahead and make the change, make a

          3  recommendation to increase the threshold.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right, you

          5  will keep us informed on that?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilwoman

          8  Eldridge, then Councilman Perkins.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

         10                 I would like to ask you, and the

         11  friend who does the energy cost savings, when you

         12  have in your testimony, Commissioner, the number of

         13  applicants that's doubled, et cetera, is your agency

         14  involved in the energy cost savings that were

         15  granted to the Stock Exchange?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yesterday in

         18  the OMB testimony, we heard that revenues, I think

         19  it is like over a million dollars loss of revenue

         20  for this proposed fiscal year budget due to a

         21  decrease in franchise fees from the Fulton Fish

         22  Market. Can you explain that?

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: I don't

         24  know anything about franchise fees at Fulton Fish.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Okay, well,
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          2  who would know that?

          3                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: EDC, Dan

          4  Kurtz.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Commissioner,

          6  when EDC comes here, I would request that you would

          7  stay, okay?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: I want you to

         10  stay because you might be back.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The Vendor

         12  Division, and the 125th Street mart, and then the

         13  vendors in Chinatown, who evidently didn't come

         14  under your jurisdiction but the Parks Department,

         15  how do we ideologically defend this? These are

         16  vendors, and the 125th Street mart ran a deficit of

         17  $400,000 a year -- these are small vendors who are

         18  trying to start business, they need help and

         19  assistance; why do we try to evict them as a City,

         20  now the cases are in court, when we give the kind of

         21  benefits that we give to the Stock Exchange, to CBS,

         22  to Viacom, to all of these different agencies? Where

         23  do we discuss that balance or lack of balance?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: I can't

         25  answer that. All I can answer about the mart on
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          2  125th Street, it is unfortunate that it was allowed

          3  to deteriorate to the point it did when we took it

          4  over. That is regardless of what vendors were in

          5  there or weren't in there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But if it

          7  was an investment of a million, two-million dollars

          8  of City tax funds, and with some assistance, we

          9  would serve that -- that could be called an

         10  incubator by some of you economic development

         11  people, an incubator industry, because if those

         12  people are assisted and are able to run businesses,

         13  they can go into the larger world and run

         14  businesses. Instead, we take them to court, we evict

         15  them, we close the mart down, and then we have got

         16  large corporations that we give millions of dollars

         17  to.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: The

         19  premise of the philosophy when 125 mart was created,

         20  as I understand it, was just for that, in incubator.

         21  The people to come in to gain some skills, et

         22  cetera, and then be able to move on.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS:

         25  Unfortunately a few people did that, the majority of
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          2  people didn't move on, they stayed and some of those

          3  people stayed and they have been paying rent every

          4  month all through this. Others have stayed and for

          5  whatever reasons thought they didn't have to

          6  continue to pay and they stopped, and the City can't

          7  put year in and year out support in that facility.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: The City can

          9  put great support into large corporations, and it

         10  can't put support into smaller communities that are

         11  poor and need the assistance. I simply just do not

         12  understand it. And I believe you do, you are a very

         13  responsive Acting Commissioner, you do what is given

         14  to you very well, I have no complaints about that.

         15                 How long have you been Acting

         16  Commissioner?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Since

         18  June.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ELDRIDGE: Mr. Chairman,

         20  there is a hidden persona that runs all of this;

         21  have we ever requested that Deputy Mayor Randy

         22  Levine come to testify before this Committee? Have

         23  we ever requested that he testify?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: We will make

         25  that request right now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But have we

          3  in the past?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: No.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE:  We have

          6  never asked him.

          7                 Have we asked, well, we have had the

          8  Deputy Mayor Washington --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Deputy Mayor

         10  Mastro.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But has he

         12  then turned down -- not Mastro. I mean, I remember

         13  it was Dyson who came once or twice, and then

         14  refused to come.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: We have had

         16  Deputy Mayors testify before us on specific issues.

         17  But I believe this Deputy Mayor, in light of

         18  testimony that, with all due respect, that you don't

         19  make the decisions on giving tax breaks and tax

         20  credits for large corporations, they don't do that,

         21  but Deputy Mayor Levine does, you don't have any

         22  input as to the siting and where the $96 million

         23  comes for the Sports Plex, Deputy Mayor Levine does.

         24  That you don't have any input or decision-making

         25  process on who is making the deal, selling or
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          2  privatizing the World Trade Center, apparently

          3  Deputy Mayor Levine does, and a number of other

          4  issues here that Deputy Mayor Levine does. So, I

          5  believe that Deputy Mayor Levine should come before

          6  this Committee soon.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I agree with

          8  you, but I think it is a deliberate attempt by the

          9  Administration not to be accountable to the public,

         10  and I think that we really have to say enough, this

         11  has been going on for years. We are going to have

         12  Millard from EDC and he is not going to answer any

         13  questions either and so we are not going to know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Let's move on.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: All right,

         16  let's get to the bottom.

         17                 I just wanted to support Council

         18  Member Clarke's observations, and to say that it is

         19  not only the business that goes to minority

         20  contracts, but as we can see it is the assistance

         21  that goes to business development, and yesterday, to

         22  repeat again, it is the personnel in agencies, the

         23  top personnel in agencies, the Budget Director came

         24  here yesterday with his top staff, the managerial

         25  staff of OMB, and one only had to look at it to know
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          2  there was very few perspectives other than those of

          3  white men, and I don't mean to say that white men

          4  can't have good perspectives, but it seems to me, if

          5  the people who are controlling money haven't got the

          6  sensitivity and understanding that they are supposed

          7  to have reflected the city's population in their

          8  agency personnel, then we can't be surprised when

          9  the policies of the Administration don't reflect it

         10  either. So, thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And I just

         12  want to go on record to say that I think if this

         13  agency was not headed by a woman and a minority they

         14  would not have hacked it to death.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I agree with

         16  that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: We are joined

         18  by Council Member Rodriguez from Brooklyn.

         19                 Council Member Perkins.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 I am willing to echo the observation

         23  made by my colleague Ronnie Eldridge in expressing

         24  the outrage that we can as a city give $900 million

         25  to the Stock Exchange, and at the same time pursue a
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          2  policy of eviction without good reason, at least

          3  that is what the judge is saying so far, when it

          4  comes to the vendors in the mart on 125th Street who

          5  are simply trying to make a living.

          6                 We had hearings in which we requested

          7  certain information, and no one from the

          8  Administration, Commissioner, yourself included,

          9  showed up to respond to those questions, so maybe

         10  this is the appropriate time to ask those questions

         11  since you are here.

         12                 For instance, I understand that you

         13  are claiming to be spending money time and time

         14  again in that mart, and when we have asked for

         15  documentation to that effect we have never received

         16  any documentation to that effect. In fact, we have

         17  been told in some instances that those are questions

         18  that your Counsel had to answer. I am wondering now

         19  if, for instance, you can describe to us the

         20  so-called trust that relates to the 125th Street

         21  mart.

         22                 MR. SCHWARZ: I think when you

         23  conducted the hearing on mart 125, a letter was sent

         24  from Commissioner Weeks explaining some of the

         25  actions that had been taken at the mart, including
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          2  an expenditure through EDC and Turner Construction

          3  of approximately $370,000 on roofing repairs, fire

          4  suppression systems and other work done at the mart.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I asked the

          6  question about the trust related to the mart.

          7                 MR. SCHWARZ: Well, you can ask EDC,

          8  but I don't think the expenditures for those capital

          9  spending came out of the trust.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Where does

         11  the money from the trust go?

         12                 MR. SCHWARZ: My understanding of the

         13  trust was established with the construction of the

         14  garage on 125th Street.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right.

         16                 MR. SCHWARZ: And the operating

         17  profit, if any, from that would go into a trust fund

         18  for the benefit of the 125th Street corridor and the

         19  construction of a cultural pavilion.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So you are

         22  saying now, for the record, that no money has come

         23  from that trust to go into the mart?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right. It

         25  didn't come out of the trust.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. This is

          3  contrary to what we were told, which is, the Deputy

          4  Mayor said to me, that the capital improvement money

          5  that was going into the mart was coming out of the

          6  trust and that they were tired of putting that money

          7  into the mart because they wanted to use it for

          8  something else. But you are now telling me that

          9  never has any money from the trust gone --

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Which

         11  Deputy Mayor?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Rudy

         13  Washington.

         14                 So, you are telling me that never has

         15  any money gone from the trust into the 125th Street

         16  mart?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. And

         19  that the money that you have been putting into the

         20  mart comes from where?

         21                 MR. SCHWARZ: Well, EDC has made those

         22  expenditures so I don't think we could tell you

         23  definitively here.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. Well,

         25  give me the best you can give me, if not so
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          2  definitive.

          3                 MR. SCHWARZ: I am just explaining to

          4  you that the $370,000 was spent on improvements to

          5  the mart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What exactly

          7  can you tell me what improvements that were made at

          8  the mart?

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ: I think they are in the

         10  letter to Chairman O'Donovan, including the roof,

         11  fire suppression systems, other plumbing

         12  improvements.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, the roof

         14  that you fixed you know is leaking?

         15                 MR. SCHWARZ: No, I am not aware of

         16  that. There were some minor leaks at one time. And I

         17  am also not aware that the judge has indicated

         18  anything wrong with the eviction proceedings that

         19  have taken place so far.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Has there

         21  been any evictions so far?

         22                 MR. SCHWARZ: Last year there was an

         23  action that resulted in judgments of eviction

         24  against several merchants. And even while those

         25  evictions were pending, those merchants were offered
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          2  permits to stay in the mart, if they would bring

          3  themselves into good standing.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So you are

          5  saying there have been some evictions.

          6                 MR. SCHWARZ: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          8                 Let me ask, who is managing the mart

          9  now on a day-to-day basis?

         10                 MR. SCHWARZ: That would be EDC, and I

         11  believe they also have a contract with MMS.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And what is

         13  the amount of that contract?

         14                 MR. SCHWARZ: The amount of the

         15  contract with MMS you would have to ask EDC.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         17                 So, you are not involved at all with

         18  the management of that facility? You don't know how

         19  much the contract is for the record? You don't know

         20  how much the contract is?

         21                 Do you know how much the contract is?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         24                 Do you know what they do, MMS?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: They have
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          2  responsibility for day-to-day management of the

          3  mart.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do they

          5  collect rents?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: They

          7  collect rents.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do they pay

          9  bills?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: They

         11  collect rents, they are turned over to EDC, and I

         12  believe EDC pays the bills.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: EDC pays the

         14  bills.

         15                 MMS stands for what?

         16                 MR. ALI: Malcolm Mastrich Service

         17  Organization.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Malcolm

         19  Mastrich Service Organization, I think.

         20                 Do you know who the principal of that

         21  organization is?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Iman Pasha

         23  (phonetic).

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Iman Pasha.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: And I
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          2  believe at the hearing you had the designated market

          3  manager, that was Turek who testified, and then

          4  after that came a young lady that is there that

          5  manages on a day-to-day and they have a security

          6  group.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, upon

          8  being successful, unfortunately, in evicting

          9  everyone that is in the mart, whether they have paid

         10  rent or not, because from my understanding there are

         11  people in the mart, as you have admitted, paying

         12  rent all the time and are not in arrears but

         13  nevertheless received a notice to vacate, and a part

         14  of this eviction action that you have taken cart

         15  blanche, so what are your plans on emptying that

         16  mart?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: We don't

         18  have plans. We submitted a ULURP that is under

         19  consideration. That market is strictly for a public

         20  market. We can't do anything else with it. We wanted

         21  to put it through the ULURP process, the tenants,

         22  whomever they might be, could have long-term leases.

         23  Right now they can't, unless it is ULURP'd, they can

         24  only be on a permit, in a permit situation, which

         25  means they can't borrow money. All of the things
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          2  that they have said is absolutely true, and that is

          3  why we were going through the ULURP process to be

          4  able to give long-term leases, and/or to sell it,

          5  whether we sell it to the merchants, the

          6  organization in the mart, or we sell it to a private

          7  entity that wants to continue a market, and none of

          8  that can be done now because the ULRUP was rejected

          9  by the Council.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank

         11  goodness. Because the application was not explicit

         12  in terms of its intentions and the fear on my part,

         13  as the Council Member and the members of my

         14  community, was that it was going to be sold to a

         15  private entity that had no interest whatsoever in

         16  fulfilling the original intention of the mart, and

         17  so I thank my colleagues in the Council for joining

         18  the community and rejecting that.

         19                 But nevertheless, we have moved

         20  forward for the purpose of trying to develop a

         21  proposal that would make sense to the community and

         22  hopefully make sense to the Administration, because

         23  the suggestion that the people in the mart do not

         24  want to pay rent, are looking for something for

         25  nothing, is an absurd suggestion and the interest of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            67

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES

          2  the City in terms of doing something with that mart

          3  seems to be disingenuous, if in fact they don't want

          4  to sit and talk with the people from the community

          5  about what could be done.

          6                 Let me ask you, so right now you are

          7  planning --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman,

          9  wind up, please.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I have one

         11  final question.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, go

         13  ahead.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         15  to be clear.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Go ahead.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Your plan is

         18  to empty the mart and leave it empty?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Right now,

         20  yes, nothing has been decided as to where to go

         21  after the evictions, if and when the evictions take

         22  place.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And so those

         24  tenants that have been paying rent, as they were

         25  supposed to, you have no regard for the fact that --
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Two

          3  tenants, three tenants paying rent in a building

          4  that takes X thousands of dollars to pay --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That is not

          6  in fact the case.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes, it

          8  is.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That is not

         10  the case.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: It is the

         12  case.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, if that

         14  was the case, first of all, as you know there is a

         15  rent action against the City for services that have

         16  not been rendered, particularly in terms of leaks

         17  and other systems failures that are going on --

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: And you

         19  also heard people say in your hearing that those

         20  leaks were there before we got there --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You should

         22  have fixed them when you got there.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Wait a minute.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That's the

         25  point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All of this is

          3  being litigated now?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: All right,

          6  let's not fight this out here when it is in court.

          7                 Councilman, I understand --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman

         11  Golden.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I don't have

         13  any questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         15                 Any more questions?

         16                 Thank you, Commissioner. Would you

         17  please stay, Commissioner?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER WEEKS: Yes, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 11:25 a.m.)
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